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Before: Judge John J. Morris
DEC!I SI ON

The Secretary of Labor, on behalf of the Mne Safety and
Heal th Admini stration (MSHA), charges Jaquays M ning Corporation
wi th several violations of regul ations pronul gated under the
Federal M ne Safety and Health Act, 30 U S.C. 801 et seq.
Respondent denies the violations and contests the appropriateness
of the penalty. Jacquays al so noves for an order of dism ssal on
the grounds that the Secretary did not propose a penalty within a
reasonabl e Il ength of tine, and that the attachment of the MSHA
assessnment formto the proposal for assessnment of civil penalty
was unduly prejudicial to respondent.

| SSUES

1. \Whether the attachnment of the MSHA assessnment formto
the proposal of a civil penalty is prejudicial to respondent.

2. \ether the lapse of tine between the issuance of the
citation and MSHA' s proposal of a penalty was unreasonably | ong
and, therefore, warrants the dism ssal of the case.

3. \Whet her respondent violated the Act.

4. The determination of a penalty, if a violation is found.
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DI SCUSSI ON OF RESPONDENT' S MOTI ONS TO DI SM SS

The attachnment of the MSHA proposed assessnent formto the
proposal of assessnent of civil penalty filed by the Secretary is
not prejudicial to respondent. The Secretary is required to
i ncl ude a proposed penalty for every citation in issue. 29 CFR
2700. 27(c). The MSHA formis nmerely an attachnent to the proposa
of a civil penalty which explains the criteria considered by NMSHA
in making its penalty determnation. The Secretary nust stil
prove at trial the six criteria which nust be considered by the
Conmi ssion before it assesses a penalty. The Comni ssion is not
bound by the Secretary's proposal, nor is it required to foll ow
the formula for assessing penalties established by the Secretary.

29 CFR 2700.29(b). Sec. of Labor v. Co-op Mning Co., FNMSHRC
Docket No. DENV 75-207-P (1980), 1 MSHC 2356.

As to Respondent's second ground for dismssal, the Act
requires the Secretary to propose a penalty for an all eged
violation within a "reasonable time", 30 USC 815(a). The penalty
assessnents in this case were transmtted to the respondent
approximately 5 nonths after the m ne was inspected.

It was not the intention of Congress that any delay should
prevent the execution of the Act by the Secretary.

To pronote fairness to operators and mners and
encour age i nproved mne safety and health generally,
such penalty proposals nmust be forwarded to the
operator and mner representative pronptly. The
Conmittee notes, however, that there may be

ci rcunst ances, al though rare, when pronpt proposal of a
penalty may not be possible, the Committee does not
expect that the failure to propose a penalty with
prompt ness shall vitiate any proposed penalty
proceedi ng. Senate Report 95-181, 95th Cong., 1st
Sess. 34 (1977)

Courts have held that the necessity for enforcenent of
safety and health standards outwei ghs any procedural deficiencies
concerning filing requirenents, unless the operator is prejudiced
by such del ays. Todd Shipyards Corp. v. Sec. of Labor & OSHRC
566 F.2d 1327 (9th Cir.), Stephenson Enterprises, Inc. v. Sec. of
Labor & OSHRC 578 F.2d 1021 (5th G r. 1978); Jensen Construction
Co. v. OSHRC & Sec. of Labor 597 F. 2d 246 (10th Cr. 1979)
Respondent failed to present any evidence that it was prejudiced
by the delay in the proposal of the penalty by the Secretary.

For the reasons stated above, | conclude that respondent's
notions to dism ss should be denied.
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FI NDI NGS OF FACT

Citation No. 379251

The Secretary all eges that respondent violated 30 CFR
57.9-22 (FOOTNOTE 1) by failing to provide a bermon an el evated
roadway. | find the follow ng facts are supported by the evidence.

1. A roadway 12 feet wide and 50 feet long gradually rose
to a height of 12 feet; it did not have a bermon its west side
(Tr. 21, 22, 34, 100).

2. The roadway is used by dunp trucks to feed the main
hopper (Tr. 22).

3. The roadway is on mll property (Tr. 101).

4. The hazard is that a truck could roll off the roadway if
its brakes failed or if the truck was not driven properly (Tr.
22, 37, 48, 100).

5. If atruck rolled off the side of the road, the driver
could be fatally injured (Tr. 23).

The standard requires that bernms be provided on the outer
bank of all elevated roadways with no exceptions. Respondent
failed to comply with the standard.

Ctation 379252

The Secretary contends that Jacquays did not have a proper
guard over the pinchpoint of the nunber 1 roll notor, contrary to
30 CFR 57.14-1. (FOOTNOTE 2) | find the following facts to be supported
by the evidence:

1. A pinchpoint |located where the v-belt rolls over a
pul l ey of the number 1 roll notor was not adequately guarded (Tr.
24, 25, 107, 120, 123, P-2)

2. The pinchpoint was approximately 2 - 3 feet froma
platformand 3 feet above the floor of the mlIl (Tr. 24, 45).

3. The wal kway was not used frequently by m ners, but
anyone had access to the area where the pinchpoint was | ocated
(Tr. 86, 102).

4., At tines, mners are in the area to do nmi ntenance work
or to observe the operation of the roll notor (Tr. 25, 41, 87,
89).
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5. The hazard is that a mner could be seriously or fatally
injured if they fell into the pinchpoint.

Respondent argues that the area near the roll notor was not
a working area or near a frequently used wal kway. This fact,
however, does not elimnate the possibility that a miner in the
area doi ng mai nt enance work or for any other reason, could fal
into the pinchpoint and be severely injured.

Accordingly, | affirmthe citation
Ctation 379253

Petitioner charged respondent with another violation of 30
CFR 57.14.1. The evidence was conflicting. | find the foll ow ng
facts to be credible:

1. The v-belt pinchpoint on the nunber one wi |l ow notor was
not guarded (Tr. 26).

2. The willow notor is |ocated 15 feet above the floor and
10 - 12 feet above a workdeck (Tr. 88).

3. To get to the pinchpoint a mner would have to clinb up
the frame that holds the nmotor and onto the notor itself (Tr. 88,
89).

The standard requires that noving machi ne parts be guarded
if they can be contacted by sonmeone. It is difficult to
vi sual i ze how a miner could come in contact with a pi nchpoi nt
that is at the very least ten feet above the floor. Petitioner
failed to prove that a mner could be exposed to this unguarded
pi nchpoi nt. Accordingly, the citation should be vacat ed.

ASSESSMENT OF PENALTY

Respondent contests the anount of the penalties as proposed
by MSHA. Having reviewed the Secretary's criteria upon which the
penalty was proposed and the record, | find that there is no
evi dence to support MSHA's cal cul ati on of respondent’'s history of
violations. Accordingly, the penalties for citation nos. 379251
and 379252 shoul d be reduced. Further, considering all the
criteriain 30 US.C 820(i) | assess a penalty of $ 75 for each
viol ation.

CORDER

Based on the foregoing findings of fact and concl usi ons of
law, | enter the follow ng order

Respondent's notion to disnmiss is denied. Citation No.
379253 and the proposed penalty are vacated. Citation Nos.
379251 and 379252 are affirned and a penalty of $75.00 is
assessed for each.

John J. Morris



Admi ni strative Law Judge

~FOOTNOTE_ONE

1 57.9-22 Mandatory. Berns or guards shall be provided on
t he outer bank of el evated roadways.

~FOOTNOTE_TWOD

2 57.14-1 Mandatory. Gears; sprockets; chains; drive,
head, tail, and takeup pulleys; flywheels; couplings; shafts;
sawbl ades; fan inlets; and simlar exposed noving machi ne parts
whi ch may be contacted by persons, and which may cause injury to
persons shall be guarded.



